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-s ~-

Well, we might stop now, Ted, except there is one 

footnote to history perhaps you could throw some 

light on. The president, as I recall, in his 

inllaguration address mentioned the Alianza nara 
'-" 

Progresso. Later on the "el" has been put in so 

that it becomes Alianza para el Progresso which I 
" \ ?) ' 

believe f\ at least it has been said ... 

Alianza para Progresso was in the in{;gural 
\,J 

speech? 

Yes, and later, which I understand is not correct 

Spanish .. . 

This was my contribution. 

'.fhis is ... .. ,,... 
----~---·/ 

lDid you ever discuss this with the p resi dent? 

No, no, I just ~uck i t in there and I said~-~ 

this is the way it should be/\ and no one doubted 
) 

that I would at l east know where to put the 

prepositions . 

I thought that this mi ght be a lasting contribution. 

\ END OF TAPE I, PART B 

'( May 2 S, 1964 

MOSCOSO: The meeting held on Saturday, March 3 with President 

Kenne~y is r~lated to the ~ impending, so; called 

Moscoso-Goodwin mission to Chile which left on 
'\'l.t. ~uv....V.'-' 

Sunday, March 4 for San ti ago. The backgrou nl iEi 

as followsd 

"'. 
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Chile had gotten itself into a very difficult 

balance of payments situation to the extent of 

losing most of its reserves. There was obviously 

a need for an exchange revaluation in Chile and 

our ideas were to the ef feet that, if Chile were --) 

willing to devalue its highly over- valued currency, 
. ? 

if it were willing .to undertake a series of reform 

measures and , t yy to stabilize the currency, primarily 

through efforts at correcting the factors which 

were causing high ~ inflationary pressures, we would "( 

be willing to consider making them a long- range 
" 

committment. Sin ce Chile's national development 

plan was one of the most advanced in the Latin 

American area, we felt that the;; J we knew, 7 

more or less, what · was going to be requiredf~·C\ 

foreign exchange, in order to finance the plan~--
' ;\ 

we thought th.~e could cajole \~Chile into 

adopting these measures by offering as a bait the 

financing of their plan. The .. invitation for a 

mission to Chile came about through the attendance 

of Dick Goodwin at the second Punta del Este con-
. ~~\~ 

ference, the one that ~"'1 in 
c~ 

January and which 

decreed the elimination ~ Cuba from the 
e.t 

int~ 

"' American system. The then finance minister, I 
4f.1\ 

am sorry, the foreign minister of Chile had apparently 

become quite friendly with Dick Goodwin andAhe felt 
> 
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that a visit of Dick Goodwin to Santiago would 

assist him in obtaining the necessary financial ~ 

~ 
support from the United States. On Friday after-

noon, the dd~y before my meeting with President 

Kennedy, Fowler ·Hamitton, the administrator of 

the agency, caCled me up with 13'· Goodwin and 

with Mr. LingleApresent to discuss the Chilean 

mission. Mr. Hamilton's contention was that Mr. 

Goodwin had no business going on such a mission. 

After all, he was a member of the State Department 

staff and was not authorized to make commitments 
~ :.1 C:::,.~ .. 

of A I D -;, :fil~===fe~I11 t e rn~a:r-t"mtfi=9eve1 o pm en !J-"' 
'-./ 

on behalf 
n 

I countered with the argument that~--since the 

invitation had orig inally : been made to Dick Goodwin, 

I · did not see any harm in a State Deuartment 

official going along on the trip . In anv event, 

whatever agreement was reached in Santiago would 
() , y 

have to obtain the aql!iesce,-""of the State Department!,, 

so I felt that no harm would be done if a person 

who had the confidence of the president accompanied 

me on the trip. Mr. Hamilton then spoke privately 

to me and insisted that Goodwin not go. On 

Saturday, during the meeting with the president, 

we discussed the possibility of getting the Chileans 

to agree to the stabilization program and we decided 



-60-

to break the proposal , Lreak it c1o','il j nto two 

parts . We would g ive them immediate assistance 
1. . 

of some 40 million dollars, primarily to be used 

in projects but in order to make the funds available 

immediately ~ the 1idea was that we might be 
) 

able to identify projects already underway in the 

budget and agr~e ~ to finance their ongoing costs. 

Later on this became impossible and that I will 

explain later why and how we finally managed to 

arrange the transaction. But the important thing 

again was the issue of whether or not Mr . Good~in 

should go on the trip. I told President Kennedy 

what I had told Mr. Hamilton and the president 

said, "I think that Dick ought to go." That was 

enough for me. I remember then that that night I . ' 

was i nvited to an informal dinner at Mr. Himilton's 

place and Mr. Lingle was very i nsistent on knowing 

what I had discussed with the nresident. I told 

Mr. Lingle what the president had said and that I 

had told the president that Mr. Goodwin would go 

with me. Mr. Lingle blew up and threatened to 

~esign right then and there and that he was not 

going to accept this kind of interference on the 

part of the White House with the affairs of AID. 
1 

The blow-: ·up was rather unbecoming to the dignity 

of Mr. Lingle and Mr. Hami 1 ton and, I must say the.1" c.}\_o..., 
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next Sunday right after I had ~lunch I got a 

call from Fowler Hamilton inviting me over to the 

house to chat for a minute before I left for the 

airpor~~d at that time Hamilton said, ''Look, you 

should forget what Jake said. I think he was angry 

because, after all, we had agreed amongst us that 

Mr. Goodwin shouldn't go and you had agreed that 

you would obey our orders but apparently the 

president thought differently. " I said, ·~es," 
~~~ 

and ~ ' thought the president was right in his 
(\ 

appraisal of why Mr. Goodwin should go . That was 

one of my earlier encounters with Mr. Lingle. 

Did the president, in your discussions of the 

Chilean package, give much of a feeling~this is 

really sort of~of his view towards the Alliance 
. " os;. '.! 

f\ ~ .. 
fo r Pro gress and the necess ity ~· reform~ This . /\ ,~ 

was one of the first . r ea l tests after AID had 

been established in November of 1961 of whether 

or not financial assistance would entail some 

kind of reform. Did the president have any ~ . 1 

T9e president was agreeable that, if the Latin 

Americans moved along in performing under the 

reform commitments of the charter of Punta del 

Este, we should in turn back them up. This was 

a crucial issue in the initial months of the 

::lliance. Congressman Passman [ 
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was _ continuo~sly putting out verbal barages in 
+o ~-c... i;>_\.~ (...~~ 

the npressAthat · not one nenny .of ~lliance funds 

should be made availagle to Latin Americans until 

after they had performed on these reforms. Precisely 

at that meeting on Saturday with President Kennedy 

he backed up my contention that it was impossible 

to require these countries to make these very difficult 

and politically explosive reforms unless it was 

something which made it politically palatable and, 

not merely to the politician~ but to the public 
? 

in general. After all, decreeing a re-evaluation 

of a currency is a very, very serious matter. This 

was one of the re~uirernents, as we understood it, 

on the part of the I MF in order to sign up another 

stand-by agreemen~a.n%'~ve thought i t was absolutely 

necessary"" D'therwise Chile would continue to lose .) r . 
exchange at at a very heavy ratEG:o the President 

went along with our assisting Chile without any 

performance at all on the first c..•uV"lc.li of 40 million 

dollars but requiring performance immediately 

thereafter. 

Was there anyone present at that Saturday meeting 
.._,j.,,.,;;) 

<r:@- argue) that we shouldn't require them even to 

perform after the first ... 
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No, no there was no one there who ... and neither 

did the president think that that should be the 

case. He felt that what we should do was to move 

~ parip~ssu·l· with them. As they moved along in · 

reforms, we should keep on assisting them and 

backing them up financiall ">© 11ut in the initial 

stages, if it was necessary to advance some funds 

in order to get the program going, we should take 

that chance. 

Was there ariyone at that meeting who recommended 

that we shouldn' t/feL~ any· amoun~ of money go 

until they had made significant effort? 

No, No, no one at that meeting. 

So the recommendation to the president was sub -

stantially in accord with what the president 

decided to do? 

That's right, that's right. 

Now, at this time, it was about the time that c 
Mr. Ed Martin ~replaced Secretary Woodward. 

That's r!ght. 

Did that subject come up at all in the Saturday 

meeting? 

No, no, but I do recall how this came about and 

maybe it might be interesting unless someone else 

has already mentioned it. On a Sunday in February 
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I got a call 
d 

from Mr. Goodwin, had I read the JNew 

York Times ? '~ 
~ - - :;:--· 

Yes, I had read the ~New York Times ~ .---- - - - - ---
and right on the front page of the ~New York TirnesJ - --
there was a prominent headline to the effect that 

Brazil was threatening the expropriation of some 

telephone companiesAand the United States was re-
...J 

acting by threatening to cut off all Alliance 

assistance from Brazil. When you delvtJ into the 

details of the article, it became apparent that it 
~~ ~~~ 

wasn't the federal government of Brazil ~61-e 

making the threatening noises but a few of the 

state governments that were threatenin g expropria -

tion. It appeared that when the news was rel ayed 

back to the Urii ted States
1
}comments were requested 

from the State Deuartment officials · and the official 
) 

appeared to have been giving the Uni ted States 

position or policy to the effect that ~ if ·Brazil 

did this, there would be a shutting off of all 

alliance assistance to Brazil . This was obviou~ly 
;:::: 
the kind of a thing that would merely confirm what 

some of the tommunists had been saying about the 

~lliance that this was just a smoke screen for the 
°b"-"'l,.:t_ 

United States to continue its, "imperalistic 
'-'"'1>'-'"'~ ... 

penetration~ " into Latin Americ<G~o I could see 

why the president was so concerned. Dick Goodwin 
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was calling on behalf of the president and he 

hapnened to be at the White House at that very 

moment. The question was this, "Did you make 

that statement?" I laughed into the telephone 

and I' told Dick that he knew damned well that I 

wouldn't make a statement like that. He said, 

'Well, the president asked me to check with everybody." 

And I said well all I can tell you is this, " I did 

see the newspaper man who wro te the story for the 

"New York Times" in the department and I would - -· - ;~ ..) 

hhink that he had better check with some of the 

other officials." It apneared that the official 

who had written the report, or who had given out 
~ ls:c) ~. 

the report~was Mr . Milton Bar!'a-1. and it also 

appeared that the statement had been cleared by 

Assistant Secretary Goodwin. 

In the meeting at the president's, in the .Whi te 

House, on Saturday the third, who was nresent 

at that meeting? 

Q~~s I recall, Dick Goodwin was present, the 
- ~...i"'c O..V'\ c 

president was there, Ralph ~~vaW> was there. I 

don't recall the others. 

And the i ssue of whether or not Mr. Goodwin would 

go to Chile was presented to the president at that 

time? 

Ye 13 ~t that time { r mentioned that there was 

this discrepancy about whether or not he should 

goQand I got th~fist inct impression that the 
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president would like to see Dick .Geoau~ g~ ana­

that~~,... why I made the decision that he s-hmr.J.~ v-.")ov-. \,h. 
~ M~ 
accompany ~ Shall we finish the incident? 

Woodward, yes. 

As I understand it, the president became very 

much annoyed at the fact that precisely what we 

hatl been trying to avoid had occured, the tying 

of aid assistance with any kind o f overt move -= 
against U.S. private interests ' in some of the 

Latin American countries0 ~nd it resulted in 

Secretary Woodward Gr go ing as ambassador 
al\ 

to Spa in 

and Mr. BarraJ. went to work in a priva te firm ""­
<.:!..--' 

> ~ .;:~ ""' 
anCd' I think i t '; i .,S 'vorth r ecording because of the v . 
fact that it showed President Kennedy's great 

concern f or this ve ry delicate psychological 
:;; .. \. :\ 

climate in which he ~~ the alliance would 
-= 

succeed or fail. If it became identified ·wi th 

the so - called imueralistic policies that the left, 
"' ~ 

even the democratic left, of :some Latin Amer i can 
. ·~~,..... 

countries was tryin g to identify ~J then, we were 

going to fail in our undertaking . Anothe r thing, 

of course, that this brought about was a reaction 

on the part of Congress wh ich ultimately resulted 
' \'.\-\ c.. x.~.,, \.o\CI >;::> ~--- ., 

in the so- cal led Hickei -Hoep @r (funendmen t. I think 

t h a t the an~endmen t has reduced , as t h e president 

Has immediate ly a-·rnre, th e a1::ility t o move a r ound 

on the part of the United States and its relations 

- ,. 
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with foreign countries. 

As long as we are on that subject, we might as well 

skip ahead a little bit and discuss the Brazilian 

president's visit the followino Anri1~ about one month 
later. 0 

• 

The next two meetings that we had with thecr:sident 

were in preparation for receiving Mr. Goularth_~ 

c;.ci;timtf :o.t=llrJ at that time the president 
-· --

wanted to crystalize his thinking about private 

investment _in Latin America, particularly the 

Brazilian situation, h_p,w best could that be 

handled. He wanted to protect U.S . citizen's 

? 
I 

investments in Latin Ame rica as much as possible 
' /"'-. 

J 

but at the same time he reali zed that there we r e 

ways of protecting it to the point whe r e vou des-

tyo yed the foundations of this urogram which was 

absolutely necessary in order to create the con-

ditions for social, political and economit growth 

in Latin Arerica. In preparation for Goulart's 

visit , the president evolved a theory of gradual 

takeove r by the Latin American countries or their 
ho-.~\ Or'I(;." \,s 
a:at111a1'? of some of the American investments in f 

particularly, 1he public utilities field. He felt 

that the United States was being blamed, unjustl y 

for any increases in electric rates or gas rates 

or power rates or whatever it was provided by 
~ ... u 

utility companie s~in the United States. He fe lt 
? 

that there was no great technologi cal know-how 

involved i n providing power ~or givin~ tel e -
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phone service, therefore there was no clear need 
•\ 

for U.S. participation. What was required now was 

some equitable arrangement so tha~ these companies 
l~ ,- I 

could be bought out and ~share holders compen-

sated adequately. Well, in the meeting that 

President Kennedy had with President Goulart, in 

the very first meeting, this item came ~p~and 
·"J 

President Goulart agreed with President Kennedy. 

First, they agreed that~ foreig~ capital 
~ c.c0.-..~~\e~a 

was necessary to the development of these G;QJU~an_~S>P" 

but that in the pub lic utilities field this need 

was not as great. They also agreed that the 

United States was being identified with these 

companies and when the company increased its 

telenhone rates or its power rates it wasn't the . ' 

telephone company th at did it i n the minds of the 

Brazilians or the Chilean s or what have your-..but it 
..) 

was the United States comuany, the American comnanv, 

that did it. Therefore the United States was being 

blamed for something for which it had no r esponsibility. 

The method of compensation had to be equitable. 

Goulart agreed to that and it was then a question 
w 

of finding out the kind of formula which ~ould 

permit this ~ g!adual takeover of some of these 
'\ 

utilities. There were, of course, lengthy dis -

cussions on the part of Goulart as to how best 
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they could try to control the inflation in Brazil, 
"' r-.. · ~ 

what to do about the north east . There was a dis-

cussion on the delays being encountered on getting 
'? 

.!<> 

the north east program going. I did not notice 
' ? 

any great raport between ~resident Kennedy and 

" President Goulart. It was relatively easy; to 

notice when President Kennedy felt atuned to the 

thinking of the distinguished visitors that he 

had with hi~~ni'r made it a point to notice 
~ ,. 

this rapf rt, comparing, let's say, Goulart's 

visit with Betancourt's visit. I could see that 

in the case of President Betancourt of Venezuela 

the 

And 

president felt completely at ease wi th Betancourt. 
~ 

here was full rapl\ort between these two men. 

They agreed in such a wide spectrum of ideas that • 
complete confidence wa~ established between the 

L \r~ "l""-.:'1...:::0 C.::.'-'''•~ ;• " \ ·· ) 
two men. In the case of President Yerrrot es;n~ .. "' 

' 
of Colombia, I also noticed that there was an 

'? 
intellectual raport which was established immediately, 

'I\ 

perhaps a little easier than the one with Betancourt 
1_\e..-0..b~~~\r'-~ Cl--

because Y.er.x:~ spef\ks better English. 

However, when it came to Goulart, the president 

just didn't, he didn't feel that way about the 

man . He felt that there is something in the man 
c7' 

that I do not like. He is not my kind of Jfolitician. 
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He was very courteous, of course , and all of the 

amenities were held to~but the relationship was 
..; 

not an easy one. 

Did this relatiortship,that did not really blossom, 

stem partly fr om a difference of view of expropriation 
(),I'"{.~~ 

orAany other issues,,._or did it seem to be just ca"f-~~ 
"<. ) 

temperment'? 

~ "' No, no, there was somethin~ ... as a matter of fact, 1 ~~c 
::;:. 

~far as exprouriation was concerned, the president's 
Q.. 

ideas were pretty clos~ to those of lioulart. No I 

think that it was a much deeper of l ac k of under ­

standing , or not J-"1ack of understanding, perhaps 

too good an understanding on the part of the 

president that he was talking to a man whose 
't.. 

p rinciples were a little b it questionable. 
;, 

Did the subject of communism in ei ther t he north 

east or genera lly throughout Brazil come ~p in 

the discussions between the two? 

This was mentioned but the president .knew quite 

well that it is relatively easy to rai se the cry 

of communistta" sub11·e·csion or infiltration and so 

fort1/:i~~ince he had been alreadv subject to 

s ome criticism here because some officials had 

been, the reaction of some officials had been 

questioned by the newspaper.>, and since he had 

some security cases already come before him, 

I don't think that he was as insistent as some 

·------~ 
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of the officials would have liked him to be. 

He did mention it to President Goulart and I 

think that he showed the United States' con- 1·t ? 
I 

? 
cern about the matter but it was not a table --

()... 

thumping sort of concern; · it was more, "Look, 
I\ 

if you are not watching this, for heaven's sake 

watch it because before you know it you· may find 

°"" yourself inside the belly of t.d:Ii? tiger instead of 

riding it." ~Jfa 
~ ~ 

DiA the subject of the Bay of Pigs come up~as 

far as you know? 

No, not at that time. It didn't come uu during 

the Goulart meeting at all. 
,,r.- D 

In pre-paring for the Goulart meeting, you f\~ 

irdicated that the president wanted to, and did , 

refine his thinking on the ro l e of private en­
<; 

terprire expropriation and the United States 

gove r nment. 
e, 

The president continued to feel that . the rol~ of 

private enterprise should be limited to manu-

facturing ventures and not in the public utility 
1 

field. Also he was a little bit hesitant in en-

dorsing Ameri can capitalist investment in ex-

tractive industries which he thought were also 
{.,. 

sensitive to publi~ cri ticisill'd' in the case of 
\.V -;; 

diversified manufacturing , he was all for doing 

as much as possible to stimulate U,S. private 
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investment in this field. 

Did this feeling seem to come from a result _of 
0-
~ soec~fic analysis in the Brazilian situation or 

th . 11 h 1 d . .y, 1 - ~ \-,i:,.._~ ~ ~ 12. •("\ was is a genera y e view~~ 
~~..-c: ~,ve...~ ~~ I 

<:;.()~~ ~~'(')'",-e.,._ 1 

No, I think that it was a generally held view. I 
~-.Je~,,,. .... "":? 

think that :th~ :president was quite c~an¢l with 

the irritations in Canada. He equated some of 

these irritations in Latin America with those 

that he had had some e~perience with in the case 

of Canad~~, so this was not something new to him. 
~-:. .,_)e-P 

The solution, as he said i\ "All right, let's try \ \ ? 

to encourage investment in diversified manufacturing. 

Let's try to discourage investment in utilities 

and in the extractive industries and let's try 

to get more of the investment done on a joint 

venture basis." He was very much in favor of 

joint ventures. 

Was there anything else about the Goulart fisit 

at thi s time that you recall? I gather that it 

was reasonably cordial but not overly so. 

Y~s, that would be the best descriµtion of the 

visit. 

We might then snift back a little- Bit to the 

Allessandre visit which was in early March~ 

I believe. 
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Well, this was, this was; no, Allessandre came ----later. 

I'm sorry, yes. 

Yes, Allessandre came in 1~62, late in 1962, 

December. ., 
I,.._ 

Right, late 1962. 
t'\ 

., 

MOSCOSO: ,This indication here means that we had prior to 
I 

MILLER: 

MOSCOSO: 

the Moscoso-~oodwin trip to Chile. 

Then moving on, ~next notation is ~ in 

early M[ ~'~ere was a meeting on the Dominican 

Republic~>°" specifically on the sugar matter0 ~ 

there was legislation pending before the Q'ongress 
.-:,.~ 

o~ 

about that time that ~ffected the Dominican Republic. 

Well, early in 1962 I had gone to the Dominican 

Republic to see how we could assist the~£ ~ 

t-r.,.tng -~·em-e-mh.ei: Hks t 4' wa31t:=£a~ dl t ·was 

J;@J $?' a collegiate type of government that had . /.ecfl. 
q 'flt,... ~ ew"f t:'J~ }"4. Tr~j1llo ~111,/y. -I= c.011s11 

been set uo
1 

i= a L•I a group of ci vie- minded 
~ ,-. . "' 

peonle~elected one person to spe~k on behalf of 

tReJff and tl'le_r Fo~government. They also 

agreed that there would be elections and that 

thev would disappear from the scene . In the 

meantime, how <lo we keep this ship from sinking? 

~ I had been to the Dominican Republic to 

study the kind of assistance that we could give 

them. I had a pretty good mission with me at 

that time and this meeting refers to my report 
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to the president as to what had been done and the 

need for getting the approval of the congress for 

legislation which would allow us to return to the 
q -:J\J -e..( nC'r\e"* ~·::::> -\·...0-:. ~~ ... ,..~ ".')..' ,,..~ 

Dominican R~ the 2, · 2~ cent ... 

Premium. 

... excise, not really a duty, an excise that we 
__ c:v ~ 

had imposed on ~ Dominican sugar. ~came 

about because during the last few days of the 

Trujillo regime President Eisenhower had tried 

to get the Sugar Act ammended so that the 

Dominican sugar quota would be completely 

eliminated. Congress did not go along with this 

idea so then he imposed this excise which he 

could do without any further legislative sanction 

and in that way some 22 million dollars we re 

collected by the United States government from 

the sugar that was sold by Mr. Trujillo in the 

United States. The idea was to make, even if 

we couldn't close the doors to Dominican sugar, 

at least we would make it expensive for them to 

s~ll here. Well, the theory of the excise was 

that this was an excise against Trujillo and .. his 

government and not against the people of the 

Dominican Republic therefore we were trying to 

find ways and means of returning those funds 

now to ~)people who had gotten rid of the "'. 
dictator. And just exactly how we·.:were going 
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meeting. Some people thought that the best 
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thing was to come right out and tell the Agricultural 
c '? 

Committe ~ , Congressman Coolie ,\L 

what we were trying to do. Other people thought 

that maybe we ought to do it utilizing supporting 

assistance funds without any more ad<?!)~ t~since ~ 
that particular moment we were also going through 

the process of getting our appropriation from 

~ongress, it was necessary to be sure that we had 

the right strategy to resolve this problem. I 

must say that the president was very much in favor 

of heloing the Dominican neople as much as nossible. 

He seemed to feel that a people that had had the 

courage to get rid of this dictate~ and at the 
" 
' same time to prevent umsual blood shed and chaotic 

conditions ought to be given the best possible. 

Had you had any meetings p reviously with the 

president on the Dominican Republic? . Do you 

remember? 

I think ~::Jmc.t'we had had discussions ~I don't 
I\ 

see it in here I\ with him, on the Dominican 

Republic. 

The president appears to have had a very special 

interest in the Dominican Republic even down to 

following the local politics on an almost individual 
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Yes as a matter of 
" ' f\--: fact, he had sent some uerson 

-r­
who seemed to be a close friend of his, John Bar,tow 

M t . t 1 k . t th D · · · · ctr<-\ ar in, o oo in o e ominican situation renort ,... 

back to him. It seems that the nresident was not 

" -too sure that the charge who at that time was in 

the Dominican Republic was completely aware of 

everything that was happening. Apparently, the 

president did not know him personally and he 

knew John Barlow Martin so he wanted to get at 

least two points of viewe a.Jld I must say that he 

read voraciously anything that came out of the 

Dominican Republic. His interest, I believe 
! 

eminated from the fact that he wanted to see the 

dictatorships eliminated from Latin American and 

here was a magni fi cent chance aft~r the overthrow 

of Trujillo to keen the Dominican Reuublic from , 
··~~ ' ~ . 

reverting back to a dictatorship, ~military or .. ,,.. 

0etrre~ 

So by this time he had a very full blown interest 

in the Dominican Republic, this being about the 
f0o$cosa~ \~t.....-.. -=1'm · r,...,11...1-t..:i:.•. 

f~rst of May, 1962 ,,·~an·d was interested in the 

details as well as the legislative strategy CLO -fu 

6f how the money ... 

Could be made available to the Dominican Republic. 

By the way, he was throughly in agreement with 

the supporting assistance loan that I made during 
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the brief mission which I undertook early in the 

year, ~ mill ion dollars of supporting ass i stancEt!) 

and~hen this additional money was spoken of, he --
was completely, totally in favor of it being made 

available as quickly as possible because he thought 

that this would be an indication that we were not 

collecting that excise from the Dominican peonle 

but from the dictatorial government that had been 

overthrown. 

The[eafter there was a meeting with the -~o~e.:rce 

Committee for the Alliance for Pro gress, It 

seems fairl~. · \~~s that a prefunctory meeting 

or did anything occur? 

I don't recall that meeting very well. I think 

h 1 f h h . d . d b . d / ~_) ..., .\. ~ t . at a ot o ot er t 1ngs we re iscusse es 1 es J ··" ·· 1
• 

Sometimes these meetings appear to have been called 

for something but then a lot of other thirigs were 

discussed. In my ignorance of the Washington ways 

of doing thin gs, I found that heads of departments 

sometimes took initative without consul t i ng with 

other heads of departments. Thi ~Commerce - Committee 
O..'f\ ,-

for the Alliance was ct:}ie initative of the secretar y 

of commerce which I thought more properly belonged 

to the !_i_g agency. We had started to set up a 
_;......o.. 

committee, an advisory committee o}private 

enterprise and private organization s . Unfortunately, . 

we, perhaps, were so scruplous about the people 
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who should be in the committee that it took us a 

little longer than it took the secretary of ~co~merce 

to put his committee toge the~~ ,2e fore I knew it 

his committee had been appointed and aoproved and 

our committee was still in the ~Tocess of being 

cleared by th~ various departments. I remember 
c 

that Phil Denserf\who was handling that for me was 

very much annoyed at the fact that these people 

got ahead of us because we felt that we were going 

to have difficulty in coordinating them which 

effectively we did have. 

Was the president asked to arbitrate these differences 

between the committees? 
..__0-... 

By that time it was impossible because ~ the 
(') 

announcements t:l:lifC:t.n-eyJ had made in the press that 

this committee had been set un and , apparently, 

the members of the committee had been so ~otified 

so it was imnossible to do anvthing · about iB ~nd 

what we tried to do was to work as closely as 

possible with this commi ttee0~ 'Q.::..,~ci..rr_c... '\-1.-.A.- '? C..·~ !-,,:~;-. ..., 

I must say, however, that Mr. Hamilton was ~-Y~~~\....\..i.'\ 
· ....... ~ ........ 

annoyed to the point cinf.:t?-he didn't want to have 

anything to do with it particularly when finances 

were talked abo.ut and it appeared that even though 

this was going to be a Commerce Department committee it 

was going to be financed by AI~~3e felt that that 
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wasn't cricket. 

Did the president have any reactions to the committee? 

Well, yes, it was quite interesting and I can re­

member quite vividly one of ~ the Jresults of this 

committee's ·activities. Pirst, a committee report 
~ t:..h 

came out from the rc_~J and gi v~ wide publicity 

in the papers signed by Peter Grace. The report , 
LJ.. '-'-'j-',., ~ '"' . 

as it was sent to Secretary Hodges~ said_,,J have 
_.) 

checked with some of the members of the co-map, 

others I couldn't getAbut here is the report 
) 

anyway. And quite a rumber of the business people 

on that committee thought that this was a cavalier 

method of handling things which they weren't in 

agreement with. At least three of them thought 

tpat the committee report was not sufficiently 

strong in pressing _ for the complete elimination 

of government to government relationships · in the 

Alliance for Progress and turning the · whole job 

over to private enternrise. It is an indication 

of how the president felt towards the Private 

business sector when thev pressed him too hard.J­
i-l-foA 

his reaction unon getting a minority~ so called , 
9 c J r ? 

p;e:p:o:P"E from David Rockefellerj\,.0-'Mr. Riston~and c 
Pete Delgador\ a few weeks after the~ report 

had come out. I remember that I was in the 

White House on some other matter and he took out 

this letter that these three gentlemen had sent 

as a minority report and .he asked me if I had 
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read it and I said, "Yes, I have seen it." He 

very quickly read it and when he got to the tail 

end he said, "You know, these people are going to 

have a tremendous impact in Latin American public 

opinion. 11 And then he loudly read, "David 

Rockefeller, The Chase :Manhattan Bank, thad ~ 
quite a name down ther~ Mr. Emilio G. Delgado, 

Member of the Board of Directors of the Standard 

Oil Company of New Jersey, that's quite an influence 

down there©11~nd the third one J'vfr. Henry Riston, 
II \C..... 

the First National City Bank of New York :;:.) He 

said, "You know, these are the kinds of things 

that these peopl e do which hurt s us and it hurts 

them and it doesn't hel p anyone.' ' That's the way 

he felt about it. 
'-·~ .. ,,,I .. \~• - "' .. \ r '"", "\ 

On the 3:19"- of May I have a notation from .Mr. O'Donne ll's 
(( 

appointment book which says, Martin and Mciscoso 
)) 

meeting, re: Alliance for Progress - off the record. 
o~ Di'le.-

Do you have any recollection ~what that /\ was? 
~o...~' .... Let's see. <=> • • • 

4,..,,'r-\.l..t~ ~ n-.. "< 
~l3-P- of May~ .· ., 

May c:3Y 

I can't figure it out. 

I think this was a briefing session prior to the 
OY 

visit of the president ~ Panama. At one of these 
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meetings which appear&here and which do not show 

the subject treated, I know that the president 

asked me some very sha~p questions about ~ 

balance of payments problems and particularly 

t:a-"'t'balance , of trade but ~ore particularly the 

balance of payments of the United States and some _ 

of the Latin American countrie(9~;ot being a 

professional economist, I was not able to answer 

him adequately at that time that it was very 

difficult to work out a balance of payments re-

lationship with each specific country at the snur 

of the moment, that it was one of the more difficult 

things to do, that countries normally handle the 

balance of payments on a global basis, on an inter-

national basis and that dividing it up between 
"' , C· wo..J s\ "' '" -· 

countries ~ a very difficult thing. Well, l\ the 

president had this idea that almost anything ~ 
" you wanted to do you could really do ; ... 1He didn't 

.J 

understand this. Well, neither was I able to make 

it sufficiently clear to him that this was a very 

difficult thing. I could tell him about the balance 

of trade but ~in some countries this can be quite 

meaningles SQ ±or instance, in the ca~e of Mexico, 

we have a very negative balance of ttade, rather 

Mexico has a negative balanc~ of trade with the 

United States. Nevertheless when you look at the 

balance of payments that has regressed because of 
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the exnenses of the tourists, U.S. tourists , in 
otf! So..~) 

Mexico. Well, he just scolded me A "Ted, by God, 

you'd better get these facts straight in your mind 
y 0-. s-:, <"Y'O.Y') 

because this guy B:eysmn~s going to clobber you." 

And he really scared the life out of me because I 

had not confronted 
\~ 

Passman and I was going tol'-and 
is ~ 

I thought that ~ Mr. Passman ~ going to be as 

knowledgable about economic matters as the president 

~I'm really going to be in trouble. As a result 
~::.¢ 

of ~ I spent night after night, after night 

go ing over this material and I, perhaps, got the 

shortest course in economics that anyone has ever 
\;~~ 

had in his ~.ifu~! over the period of the next few 

months. 
fl-r-). 
r(Interestingly enough , as I recall, Passman did 

ask you questions about the balance of trade and 

payments with countries. 

That's ri ght, that's righ~~o 

thing that the president warned 
? 

In June the president of Panama 

it is a very good 

me about this. 
1-· ~.lr vn 

came to the United 
I\ 

States and there were several luncheons and formal 

occasions and some private meetings with ~resident £:. o--t --'r-{.-.c. • •" " 

Chiarii\. Do you have any recollection~ You sat 

in on some of these? 

Yes, I sat in on some of. these meetings but, quite 

frankly, I did not pay too much attention to the 

proceedings for the simple reason that I felt that 
-~-------
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Panama was a special case and since Mr. George 

Ball had been made head of the special group 

7 

that· was working on the ~Panama problem which was 

primarily a question of the canal and revision of 

the treaty and the construction of a new canal, 

I didn't see it at all from the ,_ paint of aid or a 

developmental program. 

There was a commitment made . 

My contention~y views were expressed very 
ii\ 
..> 

simply to the president and that is that eventually 

the Panamanians should be weaned off the canal 

because someday the canal was going to be unnecessary. 

Someday through atomic energy we might build a 

canal somewhere else and what would the Panamanians 

then do? They had depended so much on the canal 

that this would be disastrous for thelfu ~o I thought 

that we should insist on getting them to focus their 

attention developing the hinterland of which they 

have plefn.ty and I thought that cattle raising and ,_, 

agriculture in general would be a way of building 

up the Panamanian economy t V retty high level t:' 

as agricultural economies go, and that the future 

of Panama lay, of course, in becoming part of the 

Central American Common Market. 

A commitment, I believe, of AID funds was made 

during these meetings, about 10 million dollars, 

and there was some publicity given to that later 



on adversely by the congress. 

~oscnso: No , this had been done before that. As a · matter 
)ltc..'"t J..S -~ 

of fact,'\ it was 9. 9 mil 1 ion dollars of sunport ing 

MILLER: 

.f'v'OSCOSfJ: 

assistance primarily for certain social urojects, 

housing and things of that kind and, of course, 

the congress .was suspicious that this was just 
-;:::; 

another way of getting around the reluctance of 

5ongress to revise the Panama Canal Treaty. They 
...... 

thought that by making these funds avai lable to 
\ ~ 

Panama on more than concessiona~ terms, the president 
~ 

was really increasing the amount of fee that 

Panama was ge tting . 
S: ,- I 

As far as you can say, in terms of the discussions, 

did President 

r e lationships 

Kennedy build up any kind of personal 
R 

or rauort with President Chiari? 
. " p 

I ~on't think that theie was much ranort either _therA . 
"-

I think that he felt that President Chiari was a 

memhcr of this oligarci~ group in Panama that had 
ro+ c)·"-·'-~ ~ !"'.~ 

been a~e:ep:-t.i~~ the presidential chair amongst them 

and t hat there wasn't any real sincere intent on 

Chiari' s part to undertake any of the changes p..~~ 

transformations, reforms that Panama needed. The 

president was never too foolish about the possibility 

-84-

of any group in Panama really developing the will to develop 

the country and to try to pull it out of the miasma 

is the < of indiffer ence which, of course, J\oot cause 

of some of the .difficulties ~ve have with Panama. 
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These oligaric groups ut i l i ze the relationships 

between the government and try to deviate the 

attention of the Panamanian populace from the internal 

injustices to which they are subjected and the United 

States becomes a whipping boy . 

Did the president seem to have--the president did 

seem to have a definite feeling that Chiari was not 

committed to reforms. 

MOSCOSO: Yes, on the other hand, on the other hand the president 

felt very strongly about the way we had behaved towards 

1' 

Panama. Being the kind of reader that he was and with 

this intellectual curiosity of his, he, apparently, had 

delved very deeply into this Panama relationship and 

particularly how we acquired, through t featy rights/_ 
-, ) ) 

the canal zpne. I remember very distinctly afte r a 

meeting with Chiari, not a t the time of his official 

visit but later on, a t the time of the eentral American 

meeting in the embassy residence at Costa Rica the 

uresident calling Ed Martin and me into the room after 

President Chiari had left and .. shaking his head - 'r. e... ~Cl.L~.) 
ti 

s~ By God, we certainly gave the Panamanians 
II C:::...... 

a royal screwing at the signing of that treaty. anw \.f e.. 'S.CA.J...~ 1 

I hope that in a non-election year when we can discuss 

thi s thing more cooly, we will try to do justice by 

Panama and the Panamanians." 
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MILLER: There seemed to be quite a strong feeling then of 

historical injustice on the part of the United States 

MOS COSO: 

with respect to the canal~ .s:;~.\ o.,,o 7 t-'CS,\.6c.·..X \(.~'(\n~~~ '-~<..\.V\ 
't..\.e.~ \ '-\t.< · -:t: c:.....s C'IC.:~ '1',~S.- GJ 

Yes, f...~ut those very strong words ~ .. used , "We 

gave the Panamanians a royal .screwin g) 11 )'hose were 

his words. ~ 
0 ~ \ ,.... Sre.e:_ ~ -jl"' J () (" • " ...,... 

~ This feeling~over ~ along side of~ was also on the MILLER: 

president's mind~that the Chiari go vernment was not 

fully committed to the Alliance . 
-rJ."9~~ 

MOS COSO: Not fully committed. That these people, f\Oi:ff leaders 

in Panama were not doin g the job that was requi r ed of 

them and this made it doubly difficult because he felt 

t ha t we must make s ure that what eve r funds we r e made 

avai lable were going to go into meaningful projects 

J;;.b.;rt' we re going to benefit the populat ion . The other 

p roblem, of course, that he had was always his r e lation­

ship with the congress. How do yo u do j ust i ce to the 
::::-

people of Panama and at the same t ime keep the .son gr es s -
from thinking that I am viol a ting all .of the commitment s 

that I have·"::made or that the congress has made m r e lation 
--:;:::: 

to the Panama Canal treaty. 

MILLER: Moving on, in June of 1962. 

MOSCOSO: I think that before we move on~ Leigh , it would be 
"'ol.,) 

desirabl e~to insert a parenthesis here of some of the 

problems that I started to f ee l we re emerging in my 

r e lations with the~·president . I started to notice 



-87-

that the president became increasingly anxious about 

moving forward in the Alliance, resul tsA.immediate~ K.~vJ.~S_; 
..J2. . .) 

performance~ca>' something spectacular happenin~~ 

in quite a number of the meetings we would have ex-
.::;. . . '' w~\\~'~..) 
changes in which he would say, ~Why can't we get this 

tn±ng going right awayJ~hy is it taking_ so long for 

-d isbursments?" He pressed so hard that I, unfortunately, 

struck a defensive attitude. I would come on with the 

commitments and disbursments of the World Bank and the 

Interamerican Development Bank and show him that our 
l\..~v:t 

dis burs men ts were j us t i\ as fast , if not faster than 

either of the two institutions i and when you consider 
,;_; -:-• 

that AID was just a few months old, I thou ght that the 

record was fairly good,.._but he didn't understand it 
..) 

that way. He wanted instant development. Well , you 

just can't get instant development. I could understand 

his desire for getting immediate results but I had had 

twenty years experience at this ~ and I know that you 
) 

just don't get instant results. You are dealing with 

distortions which are two, three hundred vears old 
~0~2...-

anq you just don't eliminate 1:±r;e:ml overnight. When you 

don't have the expertise ~ when you don't have the skillst 

when you don't have trained people~ when sixty per cent 

of the·.·population of a country doesn't know how to read 

and write, how on earth can you achieve quick development? 

When you need ten thousand engineers in a country and 

there may be a thousand available and even those thousand 
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are very poorly trained, you just don't get that kind 

of immediate results. The other thing is this, some 

people would press for our doing the job and my answer 

to that . contingency was, "You just can not do the job 

for them. Either they do it themselves or it just will 

not get done.'' Because the question is not to build a 

road or to build a school but to build the institutions 

that will continue to build roads and schools from now 

on and will be able to generate t he savings and will be 

able to fin ance these projects from now on. 
I.~ If i t ~ q:s -

a question of sending in engineers and nlanners and so 

forth and bu ilding a certain number of projects, I 

think that would be r elativel y simpl ~~but then when 
) 

these people left what would be left? Wel l, yes, they 

would have a fine road but how many years would it take 

before they could have another road and how many years 

would it take before they could develop an.economy that 

could ~ fruitfully use this road? 

The president felt that we should be showing more physicaJ 
. •• . ':) t i\ O'SC..06;::) : M i:)\""C~ ~\-.,""' .,,.,~~ .,._:::.~,...,.._...,_ \)\1··. \;-)""\ :!.r.~,,-~ • . 

accomplishment ( .'. in a shorte..~period of t;ime? 
""""- "" .. . .. ,\.~~--· 9- . 

He~..s..~a-b::a~pmip~ishm:.eJifs,, ~ lhat' s ri gh t in a 
. =--' ~ 

shorter period of time. 

Eve1though he, of cours,~, had -. uroclairned it as 8;, decade /" 
\(\QS u:iS.i:> : ""°"""·s ~<=\'~ • '\\-'\.·' <l .-\"-I\..'\• r,,1 '-\..~ Q.. ·-

long progra'b~~}d this seem to stern from lack of under -

standing or impatience on the uart of the president to 



get things going or a lack of understanding of t he 

b~s ic pro b l erns·i- u::>c~1-\~~ "\~\J-~~ ... u_'·\? 
tA 

.MOS COSO: I think j t sternKd f rom t wo things ! first a lack of 
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understanding of the ~ time it takes to get certain things 

done) and seco~d"i1: he f e lt , pe rhaps, t hat I wa s not 

atuned enough to t he way thin gs we re done in Washington 

to ge t t hings ~oving fast and partly he was r ight . I 

had told him this when he first told me to take on t he 

job. This would be the first time I had ever wo r ked 

in the United Stat ed, on the ma i nlan d, and the r e wa s 

a subs tan ti al cultural lag . Wel 1, if you f i l":'d t hese 
-.,.'. ' . 

coruorate t ycoons tn:a.:1? come he r e after fo rt y ye ars of 
~\\,)--

experience r~ managin g gr eat coroorations and t hey have 

a he ll of a t ime in thi s Washingt on jungl e, imagine 

what mv exnerience was knowing nothing about ~ashingt on 

and bein g dropped all of a sudden i nto this fantasti c all v 

comp l ex u rogram with many more difficulties than Paul 

Hoffman C ever faced in t he Mar shall 

Plan .~ Paul was one of tho se who told me , "People don't 

seem to understand that t his is a development program 

and not a rehabilitation program . ,. Hoffman sa id , "Europe 

will be rehabilitated by the Europeans. All you need 

to do i s p rovide them with a balance of payrnen o cap 
l 11 n.. 

and the y wjj;:l"""' take care of it. They have the managerial 

tal ent. They have the enginee r s; the y have economists ; 
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they have the planners: they have the manage rs. " In 

Latin America v~u . baVe to collect these people overnight. 

In your explanations to the uresident, did t he u r esident 

seem to gain any understanding of the problems involved? 

MOSCOSO: He would gain some understanding of t he problem i nvo lved 

MILLE R: 

and maybe t hat' s why he s tuck with me/\. but I s t i ll think 
0 J 

that he maybe if thought , we ll someone else were in there 
~~ 

or if someone else were he l ping we might re able t o get 

this th ing done. On occasion he would send peop l e in 

to assist. I remember when he asked me to take on c ~~"' 
Bill Haddad 1\who was bf( at the Peace Co rps. Wel l, 

Bill i s a good pub l icist. He will immediately get 

articles in .news papers" J hat doe sn't .:-~ you development . 
.) 

He can project a good image ~but that doesn't give you 
j 

develoument. T mean you can see through that eventual l y. 

In order to ge t a good uublic r elat i ons Dro gram or 

ur oject a good image about a program , you have to have 

depth in the p ro gram. There has to be accomulishment. 
'o\ l . ~ 

In the mee t i n g the latter uart of June of '62, it 5:i:sl 
{\ 

not quite clear to me what tha t particular mee t ing on 

June 21 of ' 62 was . Do you have · any r eco r d that might ... ? 

MOSCOSO: Yes , this was another one of the, of the mee t ings that 

we held with the president about the a lliance and the 

organization. This is the kind of meet ings tha t we had 

in which these things that I have just mentioned we r e 

brought o_ut in~ the open and discussed. 

I 
~ 
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and desired a review meeting rather than a meeting 
. . 

that was to solve any ~articular problems. 
_,......., o.~s M.C\ ""-t ) 
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MOS COSO : Yes, ~that's right. Now, one of the difficulties 

that he had with me, of course was that I was not a 

trained economist and therefore I did not react to 

some of these problems the way t hat a trained economist 

would h~ reacted. The question of the balance of 

payments, for instance, was ·, something that, to me, 
1 '"'\ 

seemed a relatively simple one vis a ·vis Latin America{) 

I just · could not understand why we should be as· . 

conce rned about our balance of payments relationship 

with Latin America when Latin America normally buys 

more from us than we buy from them. Therefore they 

have to scrounge all over the· world selling stuff 

in order to get the dollars to pay us. So why should 

we worry about our ba lance of navments u roblemSwith 
+'\~ N.\ 

them? And ~aid was just goin? to delav t he program 

and I told him so. Nevertheless , his .big concern was 

balance of payments and protecting the dollar. I think 

that it became an overriding policy with him that we 

must protect the dollar and that the balance of payments 

must be redressed and that, if we had to tie our aid in 

every possible way, we should do it. Between the two 

necessities, he thought that the balance of payments 
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and theprotection of the dollar was more important. 

MILLER: Did he ever wrestle out loud with this problem in these 
~ 

meetings (1) "o o 

~mscoso: He did. 

MILLER: ~ •• f r had he fairly well made . un his mind that these two 

necessities . .. ? 

MOS COSO: He wrestled out loud. He also had Carl -~ ~-0.t~ '}. e1.-\. 

MILLE R: 

doing nothing but working on this. Since Carl's 
r.o...~ --CT-

guidelines Jiav.§.- been : us:e.a¥ you make the recommendations 

which will save as much , which will tie up as much of 

our aid to U ~ S. p rocuremen t , Carl went ahead and did it. 
as... ' 1,... , • J 

His proposals,~ ust mean t additional red tape,} very 

substantial increase in the paper work and, lf~~nkly, I 

think that it has been detrimental to U. S. interests Q 

in~ofar as U. S. goods being sold in Latin Ame rica is 
~ 

concerned~ , The re has been no great increase. As a 
l 

matter of fact, there has been a decrease in spite of 

the kind of aid ... 

Was there a discussion of the possibility of shi f ting 

just ordinary imuorts into the aid category which would 

result in no increase at all or ~;tr" how sonhisticated 

were these discussions? 

MOSCOSCO: My contention was that we ought to try to get the Latin 

Americans to make a moral commitment that they would 

start campaigns for increasing the purchase of U. S. 

goods. Put it on a moral basis rather than try to tie 
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it through special letters of credit an d things of 

that kind because some of the things that were requested 

or requiredA;i..rhi~l.i.S~for instance, the exact price 
.) 

of the goods i mported went against the grain of some 

of the traditions in Latin America. As eve r ybody knows, 

one of the means of pe rmitting the flight of capital , . 
is to get the exporter in the United States to~ver 

.., , 1..->t.."'-~"e"'-
invoice 1

' the goods that ~being shinned to Latin 

America~and then in turn the excess amounts wo uld be 

put aside in some U. S. bank. We ll, if you made it 

impossible for a Latin American importer to use t his 

device to ge t some dollars out of t he country, he would 

choose some othe r supplier which didn't require this 

and as a result, we lost quite a bi t of business to 
r'-:. ::"-· 

Europe;.¢.~apan and so forth. ' _, ' l'of ...... 

We might move on into the luncheon on the 2-~ of June, 
,....e\~-:.::.\,-: 

I believe, in honor of the n ew uresident of Colombia. 

MOSCOSO: We had a briefing session with the-·president that day 

on the problems of Colombia and then we had this 

MILLER: 

luncheon which was a very informal one. President 
[ 

Va~enc1al\was not really in an official canacity ye t, 

he had not taken office, and the .luncheon was not 

very p r oductive or the mee t ings with President Valencia 

were any grea t decisions reached. 

Then we might move m to the Mexican triu. Some meetings 

took place in the l at t er part of June and the trip 

lasted from the ~of June til early Jul y . 
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In the latter part of June, then , of 1962 the president 

was due to go to Mexi co for his trip there. I think 
.-, . 

you had one or two sessions before hand about that 

trip with the president. 

MOSCOSO: Yes , again the p resident wanted something spectacular 

-;.; . 

to take place during this visit. In the previous visit 

to Latin America, the one to Venezuela and Colombia, 

the signing of the loan a greement took place in Caracasj 

and in Colombia; in Bogotf, the president laid the 

cornerstone for what has now become a who l e citv of 

50,000 i nhabitants. It
1

5 a called Kennedy Citv. Now, 

in the case of Me xico, we tried to find what tyne of 

nroject would be in such shane as would make it possible 

to sign some document during his visit and we came up 

with the Agricultura l credit uroposal as the rest one 

to attempt to put into shape so that the signing 
K. 

ceremony could take place. Mos t of our discussion~ t.0W~ 

~in connection wi th the several projects that were 

pending at the time. We had pending also a housing 

loan which the Mex icans had talked about but hadn't 

made the_ proposal yet. The agricultural credit we 

found quite interesting because it was an attempt to 

~ to utilize the already existant commercial banking, 

product banking, system to do the actual lending and 

sunervision of these loan s with, of course , substantial 
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ass is tance from the government of Mexico i 6<LJar as 

supervision is concerned. The loan~vas a~ mil lion 
dollar loan and we managed to get the paners ready and 

the sign ing ceremony took place during the president's 

visit there. One of the concerns of the president and 

Ed Martin at that time was: ~an we eliminate some of 

these irritants that have been muddyin g the relation­

s_hip between Mexico and the United States?$: The 
C.. Y\CVV\\ 'Z.,0-\1 'c;i~ ...-..~ 
~ question ~~· one of them . We ll , both 

Tom Mann in Me xico and Ed Martin over here had been 
~ Cv-..o..~\ ._,._oQ 

pushing ~very s lowly but very deeply in to the 

final throes of resolut ionl\and it was fe lt t hat at the 
j 

meeting be t ween the t wo presidents a fi nal decision 

would be taken. I was not present at that narticular 
("'l .. , ' 

me~ting be c ause this had nothing to do wi t h the cter:n-· ::>_,_ ~. 

program but I understand that t he foundations we re 

laid for final agreement and tha t has taken n lac~ as ,.. 
0 

everyone knows.· The Mexic~ reception was uncommonly 

exuberant. I think that everybody was impressed by 
__, 

the crowds and their e~thusiasm. President Kennedy, 
e.. 

of course, is knowledg~ble enough to know that some 

of these receptions can be engineered and you could 

see that a lot of preparatory work pad gone on. Oh 

the other hand, what he didn't expect was this great 

warmth of the reception which cannot be engineered. 
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The enthusiasm was very genuine and I t hink t hat he 

responded to the crowd, perhaps a little too much. 

I remember when he left the Pres idential Palace 7 
? 
' · 

to go to the Mun i cipal Council of the City of Mexi co 

and receive a document making him guest of honor of 

the city, or something like that, he go t out of the car 

just a little before he should have because the crowd 

just surged towards him to a point where the secret 

service men were very much scared that the president 
) 

would be crushed to death by the well ~wishers. At 

no time was a word heard or any indication given of 

any bad or ill will towards the presiden t or towards 

the United States. We had expected some communist 

students to make some kind of mani fe stat ions of 

disannroval wi th the trip but nothin g hanpened to 

mar the ·trin and the , nresident r esponded wi th hi s 

very good nolitical sensitivity by being extraordinar~ly 

close to the Mex ican s in his r1'port, stopping by and 
Ii 

shaking the hands of the people, letting them come a 

lot closer than the secret service people would like 

fJJ'if' them to come. I think that the president was very 

happy during that trip and he felt that he was getting 

his message across to the Latin Americans. His messages 

were becoming increasingly addressed, not to the crowd 

in front of him, but to all of Latin America. 

Was this deliberate on his part? 
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MOSCOSO : This was deliberate on h i s part, yes. He realized 

MILLER: 

..}-0 

that, whether he wanted ~ or not, the mantle of 

leadership in Latin America. had fallen uuon him and, 

by God )le was going to do every thing nossible to press 
\ 

forward towards the reforms that he felt were needed in 

order fdr Latin America to move forward . 

Did you ever hear him discus s just why he spent so 

much time going, visiting south of the border and 
7 

receiving presidents and emissaries from Latin American 

countries? It was remarkable in the short period 

of time of his administration how many he covered 
0-t'~'~ 

compare d to ~v..e~ybody else. 

MO SCOSO : Yes0 I think he devote d more time , perh aps, to La tin 

America than to any other area o f t he world, in sp ite 
'1 

o f . the prob lems in Viet
1

Nam and so f orth . I think he 

felt that the Atlantic community was not go i n g to 

become complete until Latin America became uart and 

parcel of it and , obviously, it had to develop in 

order ·to do that . I think he felt that these were 

our own people; it wa s part of Western culture. 

9~~ These were not Asiatics, therefore , by <G:P· , let's 

give them a good, swift kick in the pants so that 

they can get moving and let's give them as_much 

financial assistance as possible to help them get 

movin%;>~ ~ere we are going to have people who can 

be partners, allies, friends because they are members 
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And. I suppose part of it was the Castro menace was 
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close enough and the Bay of Pigs fresh enough so that 
..-9- ~""c....."...o w <>"- .-.... ~ .,.., o·-i ~ ~"""· 

one had to be sure that one's ~ 

MOSCOSO: Yes, but pretty soon he became aware tha t Castro was 

.. 

r·!ILLER : 

MOSCOSO: 

MILLER: 

just an effect not a cause and that you could get rid 

of Ca~tro tomorrow and the causes were still latent 
e 

there and that if it we/•nt Castro, it would be 

somebody else that would grow a beard and polarize 

these vast injustices or feelings of injustices 

among the people and the desire for change . 

Durin_g the _Mexic;i.n trip, did you p rticipate in any 

of the discussions with Lopez-Mateos
1
\ and the president? 

The only participation that I had there was in the 

signing of the loan agreement. Yes , the other dis-

cussions were purely state matters of concern only 

to the ambassador and the assistant secretary of state, 

so I did not participate in them. 

Moving on then to early July, there was a meeting, 

accord in~ to Mr. O'Donnell's anpointment calendar 

on .the sixth of July, an AID meeting. I note that 

the New York Times the~next day or so carried a 

White House statement on the Dominican Republic's 

sugar readjustment fund, so I was guessing that it 

may have had something to do with the Dominican 

Republ~c. Do you have any record of that? 
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considering the new sugar law and an attempt had 

been made,which was,unfortunately, mishandled to 
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try to rationalize our sugar policy here in the 

United States. Tpe president's idea was very good. 
I/ .a 7 

I suppose that this was worked out by the E area 0 

here in the States~but the imulementation was not 
J 

adequate. That is, we did not sell this idea to 

the countries who, perhaps, could have u~erstood 

what our policy ,,fas. We were giving-" suecial 

preferences in our market to suga~ p roducing countries 
.:;-,,-, . c 

of this area, p rimari 1 y the Lat in American CO.!J.JJ t.r-i.-es·: 

but the funds were not going to the countries that 

needed it the most(!) ~or was any effort being made 

in seeing that these funds were used for high- priority 
/. 

projects. This was . merely higher price which in most 

instances came right back to the United States because 

most of the com-panies producing the sugar for expo ·r"t 

were U. S. owned companieG ~o I don't know whether it 

he or George Ball or the president or a combination 

who thought of this idea. Let us have one single 

price for the sugar we import, the market orice, and 

then, the difference between the domestic price and 

the market price we will put into a "kitty" which 
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will be then utilized in terms of need in the Latin 

American area or in the under~developed countries. 
-._J 

\..v<:i~~ / t would not go ·to the manufacturer; it would not go 

to the distributor; it would go to the country itself 

for high priority projects. Well, unfortunately, that 

MILLER: 

proposal was not approved by _£ongress. There was an 

uproar in the cduntries of Latin America. because of ~~~ 
lack of understanding of what we we re trying to do and 

then a general reduction in quotas was agreed uuon. 

There was a reduction in quota and a general quota 

w;a,~ agreed to for which general quota a ll the countries 
l 

...... .i ... ,,_........ ~·--)r"' 'J .. ) 

of t:LYi1;5' hemisphere could compete/\ 1-_ The Dominican Republic 

which had had a very hi gh quota wo uld have found its e lf __ u; '\Z.."­

~ a substantial reduction in its export earnings so 

it was agreed that in the case of the Dominican Republ ic 
._,~, .. /:.I '-

we would compensa t e .\by giv ing them the difference 

between what they wo uld have go tten on the basis of the 

previous high quo ta and what they would actually sell 

in the United States on a descending basis so over the 

period of three years the blow would be softened. 

Fo~tunately, the price of sugar went u p and, as a 

matter of fact, we have not had to make un for that 

c Offi'!J ens a to ry ... 

The p r esident is sufficiently 

Dominican Republic so that he 

I gather . 

,_p\ 
If''' 

interested, again, in the 
~\ 

followed it very closely, 
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MOSCOSO: Very, very closely. 
~-...)~ 

MILLER: Later in July, the Peruvian ~ occured which caused 

a certain amount of furor in Washington and abroad. 

You had a meeting on the twentieth of July with the 

president and, I believe, it was on the subject of 
c...e ..... ~ 

the Peruvian er:=>: 

MOSCOSO: No, no the one on the twentieth was primarily on the 

briefing for the ... 

MILLER: 

~10SCOSO: 

For the president of Ec~uador? 
"'-' cl 

The visit of the president of Ec~uador. 
~ 

nf course, 

this question of the Peruvian problem was mentioned 0 

I, perhaps, ought to give some background on this. 

Coming back from the Goodwin- "t-~oscCo trip, I 

up with ambassador L~, Jim L~A who had asked to 

came 

be . recalled for consultation because he was becoming 

increasingly concerned about the possibility of a 
' 0 

military coup which would prevent the election~ from 

taking place. This was primarily brought about by the 

fear of the military of the victory by. A~ri s1'~ f>i?\' \1 L _ ~· 
d_ .·, · .\ H c 

o..r. \.) ,-C"Iti '"° ' ''U'o.,. de 1 a Torre whom they considered the sworn enemy of 
or u ,d~'l~'- ::1 " 

the mi l itary. Jim L~ told me that he was going to 

tell the president that he wanted a strong message to 

be brought back to the military from president Kennedy 
~ 

via ambassador L~ to the effect that, by God, we will 
.::; 

not tolerate the destruction of institutional democracy 

here in Peru and we are going to cut off aid and we won't 
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recognize you if you do anything like that. I didn't 

see Jim Loeb after he got through with his talk with 

the president but later on he told me that he had 

gotten this message. 
~o5• 

MILLER: ~ He saw the president 
'-\, 0'-l.... s '\!.. e.. 

\_C\(g 'l..Q 

the fourteenth of March, I-b&l~~ 

MOSCOSO: Ye~ ~this was about the time that I had come back . 

Now, in spite of what Jim Loeb told the military, the y 
'(\.!>.. .. 

did move in: 1r hey sti~led .· democracy;;....aJ µrevented the 
') 

electionSfrom . taking plac~. Of course, Mr. Haya de la 
. ;..o"rr. ~ ·~\e"J~,..,rn~,l"'I, .. 

Torre and Apra we re not· able to i:e,s..i_._?.·t~ The meetin g at 
. ~e)..-• -5, t/ J\ ~1~),;_,....\··.,.~~~ i;,t,._ l.A~"'"'\.)·""-·~ ,!.\-J 

the Whi te Ho.use !\was devoted nrima r -ily, nrinch)al 1 v 

to the visit o f the p re s ident of Ec~uador and as was 
v 

wont with the presiden t we went over every little detail 

of • the AID p ro gram. H~ always wan ted to know how many 
no..~~ V...:S~'bo''; '\-l~,c._;-';_. ~ \r--\·o-.t'i ,...,,...., .... 0.'-'" 
projects are on going ~ How much money have we put in in 

the past t wo years? What other projects ate coming up? 
? ~ 

How is the economy doing _ i tc. etc.? The details of 

the possible points of discussion between the t wo 

presidents was always covere~a:a~_Jie always wanted to 

be alert to any extraordinary requests for assis tance . 

Well, we told the president that, undoubtedly , Arosemena~ 

would do what had been done before, requests for 

suµporting assistance would be made for budgetary 

sunport and that we were not inclined to recommend any 
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unless very specific conditions were put in. In 

this particular case, we had reason for being adamant 

about conditions being . complied with because the 

previous supporting assistance given in the previous 

year had not brought about any of the changes that had 

been promisec(; ;_o this time we felt that we could be 

toug1{va~ Jt was very satisfying to see that the 

president had that kind of flexibility. In other 

words, yes, we should help them and be generous with 

them and so forth but, if they do not behave the first 

time, then we have to be a little tougher the .next time . 

And that is the way this meeting went with Arosemena . 

We made a list of conditions which made it absolutely 

necessary that he comply with them before we would 

disperse. 

The president felt that thes~ .. \~id he review the con­

ditions? 

MOSCOSO: Yes, he reviewed the conditions and he found them 

perfectly acceptable. He didn't th ink that in any 

way or manner they would be impositions on our part. 

To his agreeable surprise he found that the companions 

of President Arosemena also felt that these conditions 

were fair. Some of these people were good bureaucrats 
v...-to 
~felt that they needed some support of this kind 

like the president was giving them to force the 

government to do the things that it should do. By the 
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way, one of the interesting incidents of the tr i µ was 
'l., 

this notorious proclavity for liquor which ~resident -­Arosemena hadAand with thi s fantastic ab i litv to get 
J . ' 

some humor out of some of these situations tdl.1Fcy the 

president wanted to know what the hell kind of liquor ~~~ 
.51...> p_\t!Jo..\ ~ ~.,\ 

this man drink~ because .maybe he ~get as much of 

it. We felt that Arosemena probably would be on his 
~ 

best behavior . Well, it was ftPright up to a point but 

when the final luncheon took place in the Ecuadorian 

embassy and we went back to the White House s~~(J.. 4-o u.Jo.i:_3r- ~~· 

President Arosemena cou l d come in and say goodbye to 

President Kennedy, the restraint that Arosemena mi ght 

have shown during his who l e tr ip had gone out the wi ndow. 

I remember that when we said goodb ye to President 

Arosemena he was order i ng a co.gn ac after lun ch and - ' ..__ ... 

I thou ght to myself , ' 'Well , here we are . '' And e ffectively 

when he showed up at the White House we al~ost had to 

carry him. And I don 1 t think that the last few minutes 

with President Kennedy were very pleas.ant , at least for 

President Kennedy. 

MILLER : Prior to the last meeting anyway, did the president 

seem to develop any kind of · rapt rt with Arosemena? 
I\ . 

MOSCOSO: No, no he didn't have any at all. You didn't notice 

the feeling of understanding of the problems that 

and the e~pathy that the president showed in those 
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? cases where you could notice a verv deep raport 
" -

between the two presidents. 

I think the Peruvian coup had occurred about that time. 

Was there any discussion with Arosemena, that you know 

of, about coups and coup problems in Latin America? 

MOSCOSO: I don't recall and I was present in most of the 

MILLER : 

meetings so I probably would remembe~~but I don't 
.) 

think that that was discussed. Perhaps we had an 
" ~ f.C•.-L\~ 

idea that something like this might happen in the 

case of Ecuador . Perhaps we also felt that in~ 
4~ 

back of our minds this man could do certain things lvt>-'-~'-'­
ii . ·\;;: 

/'Phe effect of liquor '1 ~i ght force the hand of some 
.. } - ~ '. 

' ('\ I~ 

people t _o:. oust him. 

In any discussions th~~you had with President Kennedy 

about this time about either the Peruv i an coup or 
;=:."~~ -

the pre problem 1 did you form any impression of the 

president's view towards military coups in Latin 

America or did he ask you? 

MOSCOSO: I think that the president up to that -point had been 

pretty much in line with what a few of us from the 

so .called democratic left felt about coups in Latin 

America. And that is that if you do not discourage 

them, you automatically encourage them. I for ~ one 

felt that the stance that we had taken so far as the 

Peruvian coup is concerned was a good one and it should 

have been maintained. Unfortunately, the program being 
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primarily an economic one as some ueople saw it they 

didn't feel that I had. very much to say about the 

political part of it. I say, unfortunately, and I 

underscore unfortunately because I think that this 

program is as much political, if not more political 

than economic in so far as Latin America is concerned. 

In July, somewhere the latter part of the ~onth there 

were one or more conversations with the president at 

this time on this subject . The coup actually occured 

on July 19, 1962. The president had earlier, as you' 

had mentioned, instructed Ambassador Loeb to take back 

to Peru his strong fee lings that democratic governments 

should not be upset by military moves. In March of 

1962 Ambassador Loeb had come in with impending reports 

of. an impending couµ and had asked for guidance. 

~roscoso: Wel l, he also made a recommendation that he be authorized 

MILLER: 

to t ell them that we wou ld look with great .disfavor 

on any overt motion on the part of the military to 

circumvent the elec'f oral wishes of the people of Peru 

and I think that the president was in agreement with 

Ambassador Loeb and these messages were duly delivered 

to the military. 

At the time of the ·coup itself in July, a strongly 

weirded statement came from the White House concerning 

the coup and its effect upon United States relations 

which were not resumed with the new government which 
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came into power as a result of the coup and aid was 

not continued to Peru at that time . Did the pres i dent 

consult with you or any of your subordinates at that 

time do you recall about the statement? 

MOSCOSO : No, no I never expected him to because , as I say, the 

program became more and more identified purely as an 

economic assistance program typical of the type that 

AID was handling in other areas and not as a cohesive 

alliance · .. peration which had not only .economic impli­

cations but also political and social implications. 

I started to discern a divorcing in the president's 

mind of the political decisions from the conomic 

decisions. Perhaps the re was a fact that there was 

a feeling generally in the government that Latin 

America should not get any special treatment and that 

it was just another area of the underdeveloped world 

which should be treated as a co - equal with anv of the 

other areas. That might have been one. The other, of 

course, is the fact that in the political field, the 

people who had the up to date information who handled 

no~ only the state traffic but also the CIA traffic, 

cables, messages and so forth, was the state people. 

They had the political expertise but I still felt that 

there were certain basic principles which are generally 

applicable whether it is Peru, Ecuador or what not and 

I felt that perhaps we should have had an opportunity 

to mention how detrimental a change in our policy 
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vis ~,a ~ vis the Peruvian mi 1 i tary jun ta would be to the 

program, to the Alliance program. 

After this strongly worded statement , and in effect 

their failure to implement aid or relations which 

-
continued for a period of about some months thereafter, 

did the president contact you or the White House con-

tact you concerning the aid program in Peru? 

MOSCOSO: Well, we were in touch with them, particularly through 

Ralph Dungan in conn.~ction with the phasing out of 

some of the programs. Also in connection with the 

maintenance of certain programs that had to do with 

child feeding and certain projects which were essential 

to health and welfare and therefore it had been agreed 

we would not curtail or slow down. At one of those 

meetings with Ralph Dungan, he made the offhand comment 

that the pressures on the president were very great 

that the business community, the American business 

community in Lima was becomrning continuously more and 

more articulate about the dislike for the U. S. attitude. 

They had repeatedly communicated with the nresident or 

wi th some of his aides to express these views to them. 

Mention was made of some of the copper companies of 

the Grace people and of others in this business community 

who thought that we were making a great mistake that 

it was only through a military junta that we could 

achieve a certain modicum of political stability in 

this country. The fact that a legitimately and relatively 
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honest election had been held and that not only had 

the present government of President Prado been over­

thrown, but the newly elected government had been 

prevented from taking office . Not only had this 

taken place, but generally speeking, the entire political 

life of thef ountry had changed its characteristics 

and quite a few of the controls which normally apply 

in military dictatorships had been applied in this case. 

The pressure of the private sector, the American -private 

sector, had been mentioned or rumored about in some of 

newspaper stories. Some of the .columnists had said 

something about it but I didn't know until Ralph Dun gan 

told me how strong this pressure had been. Now I can 

well imagine President Kennedy reacting to this pressure 

in. view of the fact that he had taken a very strong 

stand in the steel pricing case. Some very strong words 

had been exchanged and, generally speeking; the business 

community had given a vote of no confidence in President 

Kennedy and this had disturbed the president very much. 

He felt that he required that all sectors of American 

so~iety pull together in order to achieve the various 

programs of his administration and I can see where when 

the decision had to be taken between a maintenance of 

his very strong, pro institutiona l democracy and con­

stitutional democracy in Peru and the wishes and desires 

of the strong private sector in Peru, he was going to 

have a very difficult choice. I would have hoped that 
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the choice would have been different. Yes, it is 

relatively easy to say, well, the final outcome was 

that after a year of nili tary junta an election was 

held and the duly elected government was allowed to 

take over. Well, what guarantee was there that a 

duly elected government was going to be allowed to 

take over. If t he election in July was not accentable 

to the military, what guarantees did we have that the 

next election .was also going to be acceptable to the 

military? The question sounded to me like saying that 

eve ry coming election is going to be better than the 

past one. You never kmow and I thought that for this 

reason it was very undesirable that there was this 

ch?nge of policy. 

Did the change in po licy after the failure to resume 

relations occurred, was that discussed within AID and 

the Department of State in any way in which you were 

involved? 

MOSCOSO: No, I ha~pened to have been on a brief trip during 

MILLER: 

those days and when I came back from the trip, I was 

told that the policy had been determined and that 

there was no sense in even discussing it any further 

and that the State had given instructions to AID to 

start the programs going again , 

In the end of July there was indicated a meeting, on 

July 30, at which you were present wi th the president; 

it is not entirely clear to me what the appointment was for. 
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The next ... 

MOSCOSO: The July 30th meeting? 

MILLER: Yes, it may have been ... 

MOSCOSO: It was exclusively for the purpose of ... 

MILLER: There were some Brazillian students in that day. 

MOSCOSO: July 30 ... 

MILLER: 

MOSCOSO: That's funny , I don't have anything on my cal e~d~r .here 

MILLER: 

indicating a meeting. 

Thereafter you were preparing for a meeting in Mexico 

City that were due to occur in October. 

MOSCOSO : Yes, as a li1llatter of fact, I notice that there is mention 

here of President Kubi t sthek visi ting President on the 

thirteenth of December. The truth is that President 

Lleras Camargo of Colombia was also present at that 

meeting. I think that the visit of the president of 

Chile was rather routine and there isn't very much 

that needs to be said about this except for a little 

antedote that may have been mentioned by others. The 
t 

president of Chile, President Al\essandr~, is rather 

aliergic to press interviews and in many ways to 

coming in contact with the ,population. One of his . 
pro°-1ems, of Al\essandr~'s problems has been his 

great difficulty in getting sunport for his programs 

because the people have not known what the results of 

these programs have been. For instance, a lot of us 

in the State Department or in AID know that the Chilean 
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housing program is one of the strongest in all of 

Latin America. Nevertheless, the Chileans themselves 

don't know about these things . President Kennedy knew . . 

about this aversion that Al,essandr' had to meeting 

the press and discussing things informally with them 

And during the course of the luncheon that President 
~ ~ Kennedy gave Al\essandr~, he mentioned to Al\essandr~ 

that sometime after lunch he was going to have to face 

over a hundred inquisitive reporters. Would he like to 
~ 

attend? Well Al\essandr~ was set aback by this invi-

tation. It didn't enter into his agenda. Nevertheless, 

he was so curious about this that he looked over to an 

aide and said, "Do you think I could make it?" He said, 

"Well, we can squeeze somebody sornJother tim: and you 

can make it if you want to." And Allessandr~ attended 

the p ress conference. President Kennedy brough t him 

to the rostrum there and sat him right in fron t of all 

the report ers. He introduced him and he told him, 

"Mr. President you don't have to answer these questions. 
·• 
-1. 

I am going to answer them." That set Al,essandr~ at 

ease and then the president proceeded with one of his 

magnificent performances in front of the television 
I 

~ 

cameras and the press and of President Al\essandr~. 

When we got back to the White House to finish the 
I 

presidential conversations, President Al\essandr~ was 

still speechless about this pe rformance. It seemed to 

him that he had seen something that was out of this 

world. .How this young man could face more than a 
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hundred of these very knowledgable r eporters and in 

machine gun fashion answer , question after question 

thrown at him without any hesi tation and with a great 

degree of sincerity and forcefulness and with a corn-

plete mastery of the subject matters being discussed . 

Al\essandr~ expressed his admiration for the president 

when we go t back and then President Kennedy smilingly 

suggested, "We ll , maybe yo u would like to have one of 

these over there in Santiago when you ge t back," to 
I 

which there was no response from Al\essandr~. He said , 

" smile," if I recall. 

" MILLER: Did the president develop a raport at all with Al\essandr~? 

MOSCOSO: He fe lt a certain degree of sympathy for thi s astonishingly 

MILLER : 

severe and dignified gentleman who was sitting across 

frpm him in the cabinet room. I think that he felt the 

sincerity of purposes of Al\essandr~ even if he didn't 

sympathize with some of the objectives of Al\essandr~ 

which, as you know, was a very conservative government. 

On the other hand, he r ecognized some .of t he very 

difficult problems which Chile had to solve and .he 

wanted us to help in every possible way but there was 

not the raport, the communication which you would 

intuitively notice between two men who are thinking 

along the same lines on world affai rs. 

In view of the earlier Moscoso-Goodwin mission to Chile, 

did the president fee l satisfied with the pro gre ss 

being made in Chile? 
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MOSCOSO: Well, President Al\essand~ was very explicit as to 

why his end of the bargin had not been adhered to. 

As was well known, one of the ·conditions of continui~g 

aid was that a more realistic exchange rate be set up . 
by a certain period of time and President Al,essandr~ 

did not do it as of that time so that it was necessary 

to renegotiate entirely the package that we had pre­

pared at that time for Chile. President Kennedy, 

however, was fairly symnathetic to the trials and 

tribulations of noliticians. He was, nerhaps, as 

knowledgab le as anyone who has to be elected to get 

to office can be of the ~roblems, the p ractical 

p roblems, that are faced day to day by politic ians. 

And, although, he recognized that it would have been . 
a lot better if President Al~essandr~ had acted 

forcefully, devaluated the currency t o control the 

in fl atior~ of his country and stabilize the currency. 

He so felt,~ell, perhaps it is a very difficult job 
a 

he faces asstrongl\congressional opposition as I face 

over here . " In a way it was difficult to n ego t ia te 

out deals with foreign governments when President 

Kennedy was in the middle because he was so adept 

at ~moathy, at putting himself in the other fellow's 

position that he gave away the ball game before we 

even:.started. 
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Before we go on to the Lleras and Kubitschek visits 

the next day or so, l e t's just go back to say during 

the Cuban missile crisis you were in Mexico City. 

MOSCOSO: Yes. 

MILLER: Is that right? So that you wer~n't present here in 

Washington during the National Security Council and 

other meetings . 

MOSCOSO : No, no, but you recall that Secretary Dillon who was 

MILLER: 

the head of our delegation was call ed abruptly on 

~onday of the week of the missile crisis so I was left 

to he ad the U.S. dele gation and I discerned this great 

change t hat had t aken place i n the minds of the Latin 

Ameri can l eade r s vis a vis t he United St a t es -and I 

di scerned it by the way the air changed when the crisis 

became known. I discerned it by the way the Latin 

Americans united against the common fol~ by the way 

they understood that the y were very close to the 

United States in having to face the same enemy. I 

think that that was probably the height of the raport 

of the Latin Americans and the United States during 

th~ Kennedy regime. 

Would you say this from you experience there that 

the meetings which President Kennedy had had wi th 

heads of state both in the i r countries in·_ the case 
~ 

of Mexico, Venezuela and Colombia and Aour country, 
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the United States , in the case of Ecuador and Brazil 

and Panama, had these heads, as far as you could 

discern an effect over and abo~emispheric solidarity? 

MOSCOSO: As a matter of fact, I think that the Latin Americans 

prior to the missile crisis of October '62, the Latin 

American presidents that President Kennedy met were 

not as concerned with the Cuban subversion as the 

United States was. They viewed this as all the 

ne· vousness of a young executive who doesn't have 

the full grasp of the revolutionary forces which are 

now at liberty in Latin America and that the president 

was entirely too concerned wi th Castro and his ~egime. 

Well, the president, apparently was not able to 

articulate exactly his meaning or else the Latin 

Americans were not willing to get it because I thought 

that he articulated it well enough. That is: we're 

not under any threat from Cuba. If you have any doubts 

about it we can prove to you that we can wipe them off 

the face of the earth in forty - eight hours if we really 

wanted to but the people who are in peril are the 

Latin American countries because you do not have the 

capabilities that we have and because what is being 

done to you is being done surreptitiously through 

subversion. Well, that message just didn't ge t across. 

Now, when the missile crisis took place then, all of a 

sudden, the Latin Americans were faced the the barrel 
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of the gun being pointed right at them. 

In terms of the president's personal relationships 

with them, do you think that had any effect at all 

itself or was it just a general change in attitude 

on the part of the Latin Americans? 

MOSCOSO: I think that a number of them must have .thought back 

to those days when he had met with the president and 

when the president had shown this great concern and 

when, perhaps, the president had not been able to 

MILLER: 

tell them everything. In the first p lace because 

I don't think the nresident knew everything at that 

~ time. As ·you know, the missiles were 'l bound to be 

there before the cris is took place and I t hink that 

these Latin American heads of state must have gi ven 

some tho"ght to their conversations with President 

Kennedy at that time and I am sure that this is what 

really happened later on and the achievement of t hat 

solidarity is in part due to the fact that they had 

been made aware by President Kennedy and fully aware 

by the missile crisis of the fact that they were the 

enemy or they were the other side of this controversy 

just as much as the United States. 

Going on to _. the meeting on December 13 with Lleras 

and Kubitschek at which you were present with the 

president this was the presentation of their report? 
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MOSCOSO: This was a verbal uresentation of what they had ... 

not of their report but of how they were going to 

undertake their mission. It was an interesting meeting 

because it was a very frustrating one for President 

Kennedy. President Kenned~ /~quite impatient when 

he wanted to get something done and going and if 

someone talked too long about something that was 

irrelevant to what he was trying to get across. 

He wanted to talk to these two presidents and find 

out from them what, without having studied the matter, 

they thought was wrong with the Alliance hoping, 

perhaps, to see immediately some of the changes they 

mi ght suggest could be imulemented. I t hink that 

something like that could have been gained if a 

dialogue had been permitted to be established but that 

never happened. President Kubitschek took over the 

floor and he talked for almost thirty minutes con-

tinously except for the time which he allowed the 

translator to translate and then, evertthough President 

Kennedy had allowed only half an hour for the meeting, 

the thing extended to well over an hour and fifteen 

or twenty minutes or something like that and finally, 

President Lleras who kept nodding his head and showing 

a little bit of frustration about the way things were 

going was never able to get more than five or six words 

in and he recognized that the time had been exceded so 
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he very courte .usly said, "Well, I am sure we will have 

another opportunity to talk to you about this~ etc. etc. 

It is interesting that, and I think that this is 

something that is a good footnote to history because 

it shows the personal characteristics of Kubitschek, 

that when President Kubitschek arrived in Rio a couple 

of days later after this meeting with President 

Kennedy, Kubitschek told the press that he thought 

that it was going to be very difficult for the rest of 

Latin America to gain much attention from President 

Kennedy because he had been with President Kennedy for 

almost an hour and the only thing President Kennedy 

wanted to talk about was Brazil. 

The president did exhibit a considerable interest in 

the study comission of Lleras and Kubitschek. 

MOSCOSO: Yes, and they promised that they would cbme back and 

see him again when they had accomplished the comission. 

They didn~t have an exact idea about how they were going 

to go about it, whether they were going to have to 

visit all the countries or just a few of the countries, 

whether they were going to travel jointly or separately 

or whether they were going to have staff to support 

them or not. It was just an initial exchange of 

views that they had or wanted to have with President 

Kennedy at that time. However, after the mission was 

over then they really wanted to sit down with the 

president and talk out some of the more glaringde\fects 
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Did the president regard this as a good idea to have 

two American leaders study the Alliance? 

MOSCOSO: Well, the idea started to emerge from the thinking of 

the Committee of Nine from the report that they 

prepared for the Mexico conference in which they 

expressed a certain degree of disenchantment with 

the Alliance because of the rather prolonged handling 

of all the loan requests and because of the delays 

in disbursment because of the kind of a id , because 

of what they considered political criterion that was 

being used in order to al locate aid and, as a result · 

of that, they suggested that perhaps it would be 

de?irable to look into the inner workings of the 

Latin American of the intra-American system to see 

if the agencies were atuned to this new prbg ram . 

They we re being pretty diplomatic in their lan guage. 

I think that they were also deeply concerned with 

the rumored inefficiency within the OAS and its 

? economic and social agency the, 

and some of the prejudices of the nine could be dis­

cerned in this report that they had had problems ~ith 

the secretariat of the OAS in getting personal and 

so forth and I believe that that crept into their general 

appraisal of the situation but generally speaking, I 

agreed that, since the Alliance was something new in 
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inter-American relations, it would be a desirab l e 

th i ng to see that, if the se agencies which had been 

created much before the Alliance was ever bar~ before 

the handling of large sums of money fo r social-economic 

development were made available, they felt that it was 

de s irable to review this whole set -up . 

And the president seemed to feel a s though others could 

. ? review .... 

MOSCOSO: The p resident was, yes, it was perfectly a~ight. 
At that time it was felt that maybe one person should 

be appointed to do this job and,since mos t of the Latin 

Americans seemed t o feel that the outstanding statesman 

avail abl e in La tin Americ a to do th is job was Pr esident 

Al berto Lleras, we more or less went to Mexico wi th the 

idea that , if Alberto Ller as was uroposed, we were 

going to back him un. However, an i nteres ting thing 

happened when it was learned that t he Unit~d States 

was willing to support a r esolution fo r a study of 

these intra - American systems to see how to accelerate 

the Alliance program, President Kubitschek immediately 

sent a wire to President Kennedy saying, ' 1 ! want to be 

a member of this." And the president then felt that 

it would be very bad if we voted in Mexico City for 

s omeone to participate in this group and Kubitschek 

was not included. Then, of course, in Mexico City we 

go t the unusual tug of war between the Spanish speaking 

and the Portugues~ speaking sectors and it has been 
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customary in inter-American affairs to try to give 

adequate representation to the two sectors in view of 

the fact that one is almost equal in size and number 

to the other so Kubi tschek got in but we didlliilooto know 
\ 

that he was looking for he~dlines primarily that he 

was desirous of obtaining a second bid for the 

presidency and that he was already an openly avowed 

candidate for the presidency of Brazil and that this 

would be used as a platform for some political haymaking . 

In January of '63 there was a notation of a National 

Security Council meeting . Do you recall what that 

was, January 22? 

MOSCOSO: Yes, I have a notation here of the National Security 

Council meeting. 

MILLER: Do. you have any recollection of what it wa s about? 

MOSCOSO; 

I don't have any clues. 
{Y\f'.~1 

No, does~tlie.B,undy have anything on this? 

MILLER: No, they didn't ... let me check that out. 

MOSCOSO: Gosh, that's funny that it should be there. 

MILLER: Later on in February of 1963, President Betancourt 

returned the visit that President had made to 

Vene zuela earlier. You had earlier spoken of the close 

raport that had been built up between President Betancourt 

and President Kennedy. Did this meeting carry on that 

tradition? 

MOSCOSO: Yes, it did. Of cou~se, there are written records of 

those meetings and we could get the exact wording of 

what was said there but I think that we have to addre ss 
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ourselves to the kinds of things that are not put 

into these minutes such as the great raport between 

~hese two men, the fact that they seemed to understand 

eachother perfectly eventhough there was this difficulty 

in dialogue between them on account of the language, 

complete understanding, complete mastery of each other's 

way of ap~roaching the problem and trying to solve it. 

And, then, there was this great admiration that I think 

President Kennedy felt for people with guts, wi th 

courage and the fact that Betancourt had been able to 

stand up to the military right who had tried to unseat 

him several times and then to the communist left which 

had also tried to uns eat him, was unbounded on the part 

of President Kennedy while at the same time he also 

admired Betancourt for making great strides in achieving 

a degree of socio-economic growth and instituting very 

substantial reforms measured by the commitments made at 

Punta del Este ~Venezuela had pe rhaps done more than 

any country in Latin America in trying to achieve the 

committments of Punta del Este. The meeting, of course, 

went around the oil problem on a rumber of occassions. 

We noticed that President Betancourt did not want to 

press the point too much but he wanted to have it made 

well known that he expected Venezuela to be given the 

same kind of treatment as Mexico or Canada. When the 

point was made that the higher interestsof the United 
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States indicated that we had to assure ourselves of 

an overland route for our oil in case of war Betancourt 

was very quick to point out the fact that Venezuela 

was the one that had supplied the bulk of the oil 

during the last war, not Mexi co or Canada. The other 

facet of this discussion which was perhaps ot some 

interest is that the president mentioned to Betancourt 

the fact that,unless we allowed some of the Canadian 

oil to come into the western part of the United States, 

which is not a logical market for Venezuela, unless 

that we re to happen, then the Canadians which had a 

surpluss of oil on the west coast would then build a 

pipeline to their east coast markets which are by far 

the largest consumers of petroleum and preempt the 

Vepezuelan market wh ich was the principal source of 

the Canadian, eastern Canadian, oil consumption. 

This was one of the more ticklish things that was 

discussed at the meeting but the truth was that there 

were no very great matters to be decided between these 

two men. All they wanted to do was to renew that 

friendship that was started back in November of 1961 

I think that I have already pointed out that after a 

few hours of friendship President Bentancourt and Mrs. 

Kennedy were already calling eachother by their first 

names and that, of course, immediately helps to put 

everyone at his ease. I also must mention the dinner 
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that took place on the ninteenth of February because 

it was one of the most unusual state dinners that I 

have ever seen. Instead of the usual horseshoe table, 

banquet table, with a lot of dignitaries some of them 

quite boring, looking at their watches to see how long 

the speeches were going to be and so forth, this was a 

very intimate, family dinner given by the Kennedys 

to the family of President Betancourt and his friends. 

I must even describe the setting. There were very 

small tables. There were about four or five of them. 

President Kennedy sat at one with Mrs. Betancourt and 

a couple of us and then President Betancourt sat with 

Mrs. Kennedy at another one with a few of us and then 

some of the tables were dispersed around the room. 

We didn't use the main dining room of the White House; 

we used one of the smaller ones the whole ambiente 

was intimate, cozy and so forth and the dinner couldn.' t 

have come off on a more jovial fashion but, as soon as 

the dinner was over and the ladies proceeded to their 

accustomed place and the men came over to one of the 

smaller rooms, the Blue Room, I think it~ was, for 

cigars and brandy, then you could have almost equated 

the atmosphere that prevailed there with the atmosphere 

in one of those smoke filled rooms that they speak about 

in political circles. It was a real political confab. 

The president had brought in some of the better political 

figures from the congress and the administration and this 
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was a man-to-man talk of one Latin American politician 

to another group of pol i tican·s from the United States. 

An extraordinary performance and, again, this served 

to confirm and to nail down this very f ine raport that 

Be tancourt had with President Kennedy. 

Later on that suring, the president went to Central 

America, or to Costa Rica, for a meeting of the 

Central American presidents including Panama and I 

·gather that this meeting was one which you had spent 
hand 

some time with him before ~and accompanied . him; 

is that· correct? 

.MOSCOSO: Yes, of course, we had the usual briefing sessions 

with Rresident Kennedy. He wanted to make the 

San Jose meeting a meaningful one, one t h at someone 

coµld come back and say , "Well the charter of San Jose 

or the declaration of San Jose //· 

END OF TAPE III 
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